
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 11 January 2022  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Employment 
Committee  

     
 

 

Wednesday, 19 January 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Barry Dobson, Councillor Annie Mason, 
Councillor Adam Stokes and Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Agenda 
 

   
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on the Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

 

5.   Pay Review Scope 
 

One of the actions on the Employment Committee Work Programme 2021 – 
22 is to undertake a pay review of the organisation.  The purpose of this 
report is to set out the proposed scope of the pay review. 
 

(Pages 9 - 14) 

6.   People Strategy 
 

The People Strategy sets out the Council’s aims in attracting, developing 
and retaining our most valuable asset – our employees. This strategy 
replaces the previous People Strategy 2017 – 2020. 
 
 

(Pages 15 - 50) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 
 

7.   Pay Policy Statement 
 

It is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that the Council produces an 
annual pay policy statement. This statement summarises current policies 
and arrangements already in place relating to pay. Pay Policy statement is 
approved each year by Council as part of the budget setting and approval 
process. 
 

(Pages 51 - 66) 

8.   Work Programme 2021 – 2022 
 

Members to consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021 – 2022. 
 

(Pages 67 - 68) 

9.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 

 

MINUTES 
 

Employment Committee 
 

Wednesday, 17 November 2021, 10:00 
       

Council Chamber - South Kesteven 
House, St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew 
 
Officers in attendance 
 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 
Alice Atkins (Democratic Officer) 
 

 

38. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Barry Dobson. 
 

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew would be substituting for Councillor Barry 
Dobson, for this meeting only.  

 
39. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none.  

 
40. Minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2021 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2021 were proposed, seconded, 
and AGREED as a correct record, subject to the following amendments: 

 

• A change to the order of attendance, to ensure that Councillor Trollope-Bellew 
is listed under Committee Members present. 

• The deletion of an additional ‘had’ under minute 34. 

• The insertion of ‘(the Municipal Journal)’ following the acronym ‘MJ’ under 
minute 36. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



41. Updates from the previous meeting 
 

Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

• Whether the review of the Council’s intranet had been assigned. 
 

It was confirmed that this item had not yet been assigned but that it soon would be. 

• Whether work was on track for the refreshed People Strategy to be presented 
at the January meeting of Employment Committee. 

 

It was confirmed that work was on track to meet this deadline. 

• A query was raised relating to a trial of a Buddy System for Members, and 
whether this had been implemented.  
 

The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that nothing was in place from a political 
point of view but that the Deputy Monitoring Officer would act as a Buddy for the two 
Councillors who had been recently elected. The Deputy Chief executive noted that 
he would discuss this further with Party Leaders.  

 

42. HR Dashboard 
 

The Cabinet Member for People and Safer communities introduced the report, and 
the Deputy Chief Executive presented the HR Dashboard which provided 
establishment data and HR metrics for the period April to September 2021/22. 
 
Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

• A query was raised relating to the number of current vacancies at the Council. 
 

It was confirmed that there were 31 agency contractors currently covering vacant 
posts. 
 

• Whether the level of vacancies was higher than what is normal.  
 

It was confirmed that the current level of vacancies was normal and that vacancy 
statistics were lower than statistics from previous years. 
 

• Members requested that different colours to be used on the graphs in the 
future to make the information clearer. 

 

• Whether there was a process in place to analyse potential skills gaps at the 
Council, especially considering a large portion of the workforce would retire in 
the near future.  
 

It was noted that HR had recently rolled out a workforce development tool with the 
aim of developing a clear succession plan. Work was ongoing to address any 
potential skills gaps. 

4



• Whether absent rates had reduced or increased due to home working. 
 

It was advised that the year being compared to was one of the lowest for ill health 
as most staff had been working from home full time. Conversely, current sickness 
levels were high. It was noted that current levels should be compared to a ‘normal’ 
year, prior to 2020, in order to gain a more accurate understanding.  

 

• Members noted that a piece of work should be undertaken on how the values 
of the Council could be instilled in staff working remotely.  
 

• Whether there was an update regarding incomplete Return to Work forms. 
 

It was noted that HR was continuing to follow up on any incomplete Return to Work 
forms to ensure that all information is collected. Members agreed that Return to 
Work as a process was much more effective when completed on the first day of a 
staff members’ return and should not be completed weeks later.  

• What the reason for collecting the personal details information was, as so 
many staff had refused to provide it.  
 

It was noted that the information helps the Council to build a more accurate picture 
of its staff profile in terms of equality data, highlighting areas of under-
representation from which actions can be developed. The staff profile of the Council 
should reflect the residents it serves, and the information helped to avoid the 
exclusion of any parts of the community.  

 

• Whether staff had been asked to provide their personal details information. 
It was confirmed that communication was sent to staff asking them to update 
their personal details and that this resulted in a 10% increase in response. 

Members noted the information provided in the dashboard for the six-month period 
April to September 2021 and commended all the work which had taken place. 

 
43. Mental Health and Wellbeing Update 

 

The Cabinet Member for People and Safer communities presented the report which 
provided an update on the Council’s Mental Health and Wellbeing action plan. The 
report highlighted the actions which had been taken to support staff and Member 
wellbeing, including the training of additional First Aiders for Mental Health. 

The Deputy Chief Executive added that work was ongoing to ensure that managers 
have the tools they need to support their teams, especially as many staff continued 
to work virtually. 

Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

• Whether the providers of the bespoke mental health training had been 
evaluated and whether a comparison of costs had been undertaken. 

5



It was confirmed that the Council has previously worked with both providers and 
that feedback collected had been overwhelmingly positive. The cost of the training 
had been compared to other available training and did not exceed average costs. 

• Referring to the Equalities Impact Assessment, it was noted that the wording 
‘both sexes’ may be perceived as discriminatory. 
 

Members noted the update on the Mental Health and Wellbeing action plan and 
thanked those who had been involved in the work.  

 
44. Name Blind Recruitment Procedure 

 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer communities presented the report and 
the appended policy document on the implementation of Name Blind Recruitment. 
The Committee had previously discussed the implementation of Name Blind 
Recruitment at the 22 September meeting and had requested the policy document 
be brought to the current meeting for consideration.  

DECISION: 

The Employment Committee approve the updated Recruitment and Selection 
Procedure to include Name Blind Recruitment. 

 
45. Return to work at the Council Offices 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive provided a verbal update on the Council’s return to 
work at the Offices. He noted that it was important to consider that the District was 
currently experiencing a high rate of Covid-19 infections. At present, it was 
necessary for staff to work from the offices occasionally, for team building purposes 
but that staff would continue to work remotely where appropriate.  

When considering a return to work at the Council offices, the overriding priority 
would be the business needs of the organisation. Following this, the impact on 
individual staff would be considered and finally, individual choice of staff. Most 
departments would have a blended approach, and this seems to be the best way 
going forward if possible.  

Members raised various questions and the responses were as follows: 

• Whether there was any indication that productivity had decreased since home 
working had been introduced.  

 
It was noted that there was no evidence to suggest that productivity had decreased 
since staff had begun to work virtually. It was confirmed that performance 
management would continue, but that in general terms staff productivity had not 
been affected by home working. It was noted that the danger of continued home 
working was a loss of staff connectivity to the organisation, rather than a drop in 
productivity.  

6



• How the Council monitored which staff were working from the office or from 
home. 

 
It was noted that staff complete daily timesheets which documented when they 
worked. Whether staff worked from home or in the office was left to the discretion of 
line managers and would be agreed in advance. Furthermore, all staff entering and 
leaving the offices were required to sign in and out. 

The Leader noted that the Council had become more agile in terms of its working 
arrangements, allowing for staff to experience a flexible work-life balance. He noted 
that the existing office accommodation required further work and so he would not 
advocate for all staff returning at the present time. It was unlikely that staff would 
return to the offices full time, and this was likely to be the case nationally. 

• A concern was raised relating to staff and Members who may be less IT 
literate and who may face issues with a reliance on technology to work.  

 
It was noted that training courses were available for those needing extra support 
around IT use. Members discussed how the pandemic had accelerated all age 
groups’ use and knowledge of IT.  

• Whether there were restrictions on the time staff can flexibly work. 
 

It was confirmed that there was no formal restriction on the time staff can flexibly 
work. It was further noted that although staff are encouraged not to work additional 
or unsociable hours than they are contracted to, sometimes this was essential to 
support the successful operation of the Council.  

 

• A concern was raised relating to residents having been unable to get in touch 
with Council staff.  

 
It was noted that due to the pandemic, there had been an increase in demand for 
the Council’s services whilst staff levels had remained the same. Senior 
management was aware of the increase in service demand and were working with 
all departments to attempt to solve issues prior to residents needing to contact the 
organisation. 

 
46. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive presented the Employment Committee Work Plan for 
the period 2021 -22. He noted that more non-assigned items would be assigned 
prior to the next meeting.  

Members commented on: 

• That the Gender Pay Gap would need to be added to the Work Programme, 
as a statutory responsibility. 

 

7



• Whether the Committee ought to discuss the Pay Review at the next meeting, 
rather than in March 2022, as negotiations around this were currently taking 
place.  

 

It was noted that the current pay negotiations were separate to the Pay Review, but 
that the pay negotiations could be brought to the Committee for discussion at a 
future meeting. 

 

• Members agreed that going forward, the Work Programme would not need to 
include the items being discussed at the meeting currently being held.  
The Employment Committee noted the Work Plan 2021-22. 
 

47. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 
 

There was none. 
 

48. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 11:33. 
 
 

8



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
19 January 2022 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 

           

 

Pay Review 

One of the actions on the Employment Committee Work Programme 2021 – 22 is to undertake a 
pay review of the organisation.  The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed scope of the 
pay review. 
 
 

 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 

 
 01476 406137 

  j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 20 December 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 22 December 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason (Cabinet Member for People 
and Safer Communities) 

6 January 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes and endorses the scope and makes any further suggestions to be included 
in the pay review. 

 

9

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A pay review is one of the actions of the Employment Committee Workplan 2021 – 22 and 

links into the Reward and Recognition theme of the draft People Strategy 2022 – 2025. 

1.2 Some preliminary work on a review of pay and reward was carried out by independent 

consultants in 2019 which highlighted: 

- The lack of external market competitiveness in some hard-to-recruit areas 

- The lack of incentive and recognition of higher contributors ‘who go the extra mile’ 

- The current pay structure is not delivering competitive levels of pay for some key roles 

1.3 One of the aims of the pay review is to ensure that our pay and reward offer is fair, 

transparent, affordable and helps to attract and retain high performing staff. 

1.4 This report seeks the views of the Employment Committee on the scope of the pay review 

and to assist with this the following information provides background information on our 

current pay arrangements. 

Background to SKDC Pay Arrangements 

1.5 Around April 1998 SKDC moved from the national pay scales to a condensed local pay 

scale with single point salaries.  It has proved impossible to locate the documentation and 

rationale for this decision due to 22 years which have passed since it was made.   

1.6 The NJC Local Government Job Evaluation scheme was implemented during 2004 and 

the pay structure was designed to meet affordability needs at the time.   

1.7 There is no flexibility within the job evaluation scheme and no option to take account of 

competitive market conditions.  This is challenging for roles which are very difficult to 

recruit to. This means that on occasion the council has had to make use of market 

supplements for some difficult to fill roles and whilst this can resolve an immediate issue it 

does not resolve the ongoing issues or provide stability. The job evaluation scheme does 

not cover roles at Head of Service level and above and evaluation of these roles is based 

on historical data and the use of benchmarking. 

National pay bargaining 

1.8 SKDC are not on the local government pay spine and technically not subject to national 

pay bargaining.  However, there is a collective agreement in place with the trade unions 

that the local Cost of Living Pay Award shall be based upon pay reviews by the National 

Joint Council and Local Government Services (NJC).” In practice the SKDC pay award 

has mirrored the national pay award. 

National Terms and Conditions 

1.9 Some SKDC terms and conditions of employment differ from national terms and 

conditions (Green Book).  In general terms these differences are: 

-  SKDC are on local pay grades rather than local government pay spine 

-  SKDC do not pay enhanced rates of pay for overtime, with the exception of custom 

and practice arrangements in Repairs and enhanced pay and time off for bank 

holidays 

-  SKDC do not pay car allowances and have pool car arrangements in place and pay 

business mileage to employees who use their own cars at a rate of 45p per mile 

10



 

 
 

SKDC Pay Grades 

1.10 There are 43 separate pay grades, excluding National Minimum Wage pay rates and multi 

skill elements for craft operatives. 

1.11 Some of the pay grades have been created as an interim point between two pay grades at 

the point of recruitment.  This may be where new employees are appointed on a 

development grade as set out in the Pay Policy Statement 2021-2022.  

1.12 Analysis of current pay grades and roles highlights inconsistencies, for example between 

administrative roles and team leader roles across the organisation.  A revised pay 

structure could help to address these inconsistencies.  Pay rates across the organisation 

would be more transparent which should help staff to feel more positively about fairness 

and consistency of pay. 

Hard to Recruit Roles 

1.13 It has been identified through the recruitment process that the salaries for some roles are 

low in comparison to the market and other local authorities.  These include Environmental 

Health, Finance, Land Charges and Democratic Services.  Salaries are currently set using 

the job evaluation system.   

 

1.14 For 2021-22 the decision was made to pay the Real Living Wage as the minimum salary 

for staff.  For 2021-22 the Real Living Wage was set at £9.50 per hour.  To ensure 

differentiation between the lower pay grades, this resulted in pay grades SK1 to SK8 

receiving a pay increase. 

1.15 The national pay award, effective from 1st April 2021 is still being negotiated with the trade 

unions. 

1.16 Those grades which received the increases linked to the Real Living Wage will not also 

receive the national pay award.  SKDC normally uses the agreed national pay award rates 

for its annual pay award/ 

 

2 Issues To Be Considered 

2.1 In November 2021, the Real Living Wage for 2022 increased to £9.90 per hour and 

employers who are signed up to the Real Living Wage have to implement this by May 

2022. 

2.2 As was the case for 2021, the bottom grades on the pay structure will need to be reviewed 

to ensure there is differentiation between grades. 

2.3 The National Living Wage from April 2022 is £9.50 per hour.   

2.4 SKDC’s pay structure is based on single point salaries with no opportunities for 

progression.  This differs from the majority of Local Government employers which have 

grades within pay bands.   

2.5 The findings of the 2018 staff survey indicated that over a third of employees did not feel 

that hard work and good performance are recognised at the Council and that staff are paid 

fairly for the job they do. 

2.6 To ensure that there is flexibility to attract/retain as markets change for roles in short 

supply consideration may have to be given to paying a recruitment premium or market 

11



 

 
 

supplement at commencement or during employment.  This will impact where there is a 

new starter in the same role as an existing employee and needs to be considered in terms 

of equity. 

2.7 Where market supplements are applied as a recruitment tool these are carried out on an 

ad hoc basis using basic methods for comparing roles.  Pay benchmarking tools are 

available which would simplify the process and provide more consistent benchmarking 

data. 

2.8 There is some inconsistency of overtime rates and standby rates and when they are 

applied across the Council and these need to be reviewed to ensure they are fair and 

equitable. 

2.9 The issue of payment for shift working and nights e.g. CCTV has recently been raised by 

employees and this needs to be reviewed and benchmarked to ensure that they are fair 

and equitable. 

2.10 The Council has a Night Working Additional Payment Agreement which pays an additional 

hour where work is carried out between 22.00 and 06.00. 

 

3 Recommended Scope 

3.1 The following are recommended to be in scope for the pay review: 

- The use of career grades to attract talent to the organisation and provide development 

opportunities and progression to develop and retain rising stars.  This work will need to 

be linked to the training budget to ensure that we can deliver what is in career 

development plans 

- A review of the lower range of pay grades to ensure that there is clear differentiation 

between the grades, based on the 2022 Real Living Wage rate.  

- Analysis of similar roles across the organisation to identify any inconsistencies 

between pay grades.  Consideration to be given to the setting of salary bands for 

different levels e.g. senior officer, 1st line manager, team leader, service manager.  

This would help to demonstrate fairness and consistency between pay grades across 

the whole organisation. Salary bands are already in place for Head of Service roles 

and above. 

- Develop a consistent process for the benchmarking of roles, particularly those which 

are hard to recruit to.  Consideration could be given to using job evaluation in 

conjunction with salary benchmarking, and the use of external benchmarking tools.  to 

provide meaningful evidence to support pay decisions. 

3.2 Whilst there are inconsistencies across roles there is no indication that there is a gender 

pay gap issue.  If this does become an issue the Council may wish to carry out an equal 

pay audit to explore the reasons. 

3.3 The pay review should also consider non-pay benefits which are of value to staff.  These 

currently include flexible working, annual leave entitlement, provision of an Employee 

Assistance Programme and several salary sacrifice schemes.  Other options which could 

be considered are recognition initiatives such as staff awards and additional leave. 

12



 

 
 

3.4 Opportunities could be explored for the provision of a benefits platform which enables staff 

to have access to funded and paid for benefits.  Examples of benefits that staff pay for 

include a health cash plan. 

3.5 Once the scope of the pay review has been agreed an action plan with timelines can be 

formulated. 

3.6 It is proposed that the Employment Committee receive an updated report on the pay 

review no later than June 2022. 

3.7 There may be budget implications for the Cabinet Member and the S151 Officer to 

consider.  Any financial implications of the pay review will need to be determined and 

approved by Council. 

 

4 Financial Implications  

4.1 The pay review could have significant financial implications for the Council and so the 

review will need to be undertaken in the context of the financial framework.  It is important 

that any changes to the salary bandings are carefully considered prior to any 

implementation. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer  

5 Legal and Governance Implications  

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

6.1 Equality Analysis will be completed once the scope for the pay review has been agreed. 

7 Risk and Mitigation 

7.1 Not applicable to this report. 

8 Community Safety Implications  

8.1 There are no community safety implications relating to this report. 

9 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

9.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact.  

10 Other Implications (where significant)  

10.1 There are no other implications relating to this report. 

11 Background Papers 

11.1 Pay Policy Statement 2021 – 2022 

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26281&p=0 

 

13

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26281&p=0


 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Choose Date 

Previously Considered by: Choose 
Committee 

Choose Date 

Final Decision date   Choose Date 

 

 

14



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
19 January 2022 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People & Safer Communities 

         
  

 

People Strategy 2022 - 2025 

The People Strategy sets out the Council’s aims in attracting, developing and retaining our most 
valuable asset – our employees.  This strategy replaces the previous People Strategy 2017-2020. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Plan (2020 – 2023) identifies that it needs to develop a People Strategy 
to support the retention and attraction of high-quality staff. This Strategy sets out a positive vision 
and clear way forward to achieve ways of engaging and developing existing, most valued 
employees at South Kesteven District Council and aims to recruit high performing individuals to 
join #TeamSK. 
 

 
 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 

 
 01476 406137 

  j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 11 January 2022 

Approved by: Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 11 January 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason (Cabinet Member for People 
& Safer Communities) 

11 January 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Recommends to Cabinet that the People Strategy 2021 – 2025 is approved. 

 

15

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A People Strategy is designed to inspire and achieve widespread, organisation-wide 

alignment on the Council’s goals and priorities through its employees. 

1.2 The People Strategy forms part of the golden thread from the Corporate Plan through to 

service/team plans and individual objectives and incorporates the Council’s values and 

behaviours.  

1.3 The People Strategy is the Council’s plan of ways to think about and set into motion ways 

to attract, engage, support, develop, retain, and generally inspire our staff. 

1.4 The Council’s previous People Strategy covered the period 2017 – 2020 and an updated 

strategy is needed to reflect the vision and objectives of the Corporate Plan 2020 – 2023 

to ensure that we are a high performing council that attracts and retains the best staff to 

deliver high-quality services. 

1.5 A new People Strategy was due to be implemented in 2021.  However, there were some 

management staffing changes within the HR team which had an impact on the progress of 

the People Strategy work.  

1.6 A new People Strategy covering the period 2022 – 2025 has been drafted for 

consideration by the Employment Committee – attached as Appendix 1. 

1.7 This strategy focuses on five key themes: Recruitment; Development; Engagement; 

Diversity; Reward and Recognition; and Wellbeing.  It provides details of where we are 

now, where we want to be and how to get there. 

1.8 A summary of the focus of each of the themes is as follows: 

Recruitment 

1.9 This theme focuses primarily on attracting the right people to our organisation through 

vacancies and advertising, and to create a culture in order to retain them for a long period.  

Development 

1.10 This theme expands on how we as an organisation train, and develop skills within our 

workforce creating high-performing employees and teams working towards to the Council 

priorities. 

Engagement 

1.11 This theme is key, as it is all about how we as a Council interact with our workforce. It sets 

out how we will strengthen employee engagement, creating an inspired workforce. 

Diversity 

1.12 The strategy sets out how we will aim to increase the equality and diversity of the 

organisation and build upon what we have already achieved. The strategy recognises the 

benefits and strengths that having a diverse workforce brings.  

Reward and Recognition 

1.13 Linking in with engagement and retention of our employees is how we reward and 

recognise high performers. This theme sets out how we will attract and motivate our 

people with an attractive reward offer including both pay and non-pay elements. 

 

16



 

 
 

Wellbeing 

1.14 How our staff feel and how safe they are at work is an important theme for this Strategy. 

This theme focuses on providing a safe and healthy working environment for our people 

and plans on how we aim to do so.  

It is anticipated that a People Strategy Action Plan will be developed to deliver the 

ambitions of the strategy and that this work will commence in the first half of 2022.   

2 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

2.1 The reason for the recommendation is to ensure that there is an up to date People 

Strategy which will help the Council to deliver against its priorities and deliver the vision of 

the Corporate Plan. 

3 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

3.1 If the Employment Committee approves the People Strategy, the strategy will be 

communicated to all staff and an action plan created to deliver the objectives of the 

strategy. 

4 Financial Implications  

4.1 The largest financial resource of the Council is it’s staff and it is important that there is a 

strategy that supports the themes of recruitment, development, engagement, reward and 

recognition and wellbeing.  The strategy, if approved by Cabinet, will form the basis for 

budget setting for staffing levels, training and development, recruitment and welfare 

budgets. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

5 Legal and Governance Implications  

5.1 There are no legal and governance implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

6.1 The actions referred to in this report have positive equality implications. An Equality 

Impact Assessment has been undertaken to ensure that the People Strategy does not 

present barriers under any of its themes or disadvantage any protected groups. There are 

no safeguarding implications resulting from this report. 

6.2 The implementation of the People Strategy will enhance the reputation of the Council as 

an Equal Opportunities Employer.    

7 Risk and Mitigation 

7.1 Not applicable. 

8 Community Safety Implications  

8.1 There are no community safety implications relating to this report. 

9 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

9.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact.  

17



 

 
 

10 Other Implications (where significant)  

10.1 There are no other implications relating to this report. 

11 Appendices 

11.1 Appendix 1 – Draft People Strategy 2022 - 2025 

11.2 Appendix 2 – Equality Impact Analysis 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Choose Date 

Previously Considered by: Choose 
Committee 

Choose Date 

Final Decision date   Choose Date 

 

 

18



2022/2025

#TeamSK 
People  
Strategy 
Attracting, developing and retaining 
our most valuable asset – the people 
that work here.

Appendix 1

19



2

Contents

People Strategy Aim 4

#TeamSK  Vision 5

How you contribute to our #TeamSK  Vision 5

Recruitment 6-7

Development 8-9

Engagement 10-11

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 12-13

Reward and Recognition 14-15

Wellbeing 16-17

Delivering and Monitoring our Strategy 18

20



3

Introduction
South Kesteven District Council is an extremely 
ambitious and proactive organisation, and the 
secret to our success is our incredibly committed 
staff and the passion they share about achieving 
the best outcomes for local residents and our 
customers.

The effectiveness of any public sector 
organisation hinges not just on attracting the 
best talent for providing high quality services, 
but investing in that talent to create a strong 
workplace community that supports its staff and 
recognises the unique attributes of every team 
member.

We are committed to our core values, with 
Accountability, Flexibility, Agility, and Equity being 
chief among them. Putting these principles into 
action ensures that all our colleagues feel like a 
valued and respected member of the #TeamSK 
family.

While securing and retaining talent is important, 
we also take seriously our responsibility to 
develop the skills of our staff, ensuring that a 
career with SKDC provides not simply a job but a 
progressive journey of learning and growing. 

No organisation can rest on its laurels, which is 
why SKDC itself has a clear direction to grow and 
evolve, helping us to continue improving as both a 
service provider and an employer. 

We pride ourselves on our regular dialogue with 
staff to ensure that the experiences and ideas 
of team members at all levels are heard by the 
leadership team and that this input informs the 
future direction of the organisation.

The last few years have been extremely 
challenging for our residents and businesses, and 
this also the case for #TeamSK – many of whom 
have had to work even harder to adapt and keep 
services going throughout an unprecedented 
global pandemic.

The impact this period of stress and uncertainty 
has had on staff wellbeing cannot be understated, 
which why we prioritise the mental health of every 
staff member. Productivity is unsustainable without 
wellbeing, and having a positive work/life balance 
and an empathetic support network is key.

Through this People Strategy, South Kesteven 
District Council commits itself to the development 
of, and support for, both existing and future staff 
members. Each member of #TeamSK makes 
an invaluable contribution to the District and its 
residents, and with this strategy we can help all of 
our staff understand the value of their efforts and 
how to access the support they need to maximise 
their potential.

Like SKDC itself, our People Strategy is always 
evolving and improving. Our excellent HR 
team will continue to monitor key data on our 
workforce and will keep communicating with all 
staff members and trade unions, guaranteeing 
that this strategy remains a living embodiment of 
#TeamSK and its commitment to progress.

Karen Bradford 
Chief Executive 
South Kesteven District Council

Cllr Annie Mason
Cabinet Member for People  
and Safer Communities

 @southkesteven
  @southkdc
  linkedin.com/company/south-kesteven-council

21



4

Our People Strategy is our roadmap for attracting, 
developing and retaining our most
valuable asset – YOU, the people that work here.

It is at the heart of how we will become the best 
district in which to live, work, and visit.

Its aim is to create a flexible, innovative 
organisation that has the skills, resilience and 
motivation to deliver and achieve the Council’s 
objective, and is a key component in driving high 
performance.
 

The Strategy sets out: 

¢ where we are now; 

¢ where we want to be; and 

¢ how we plan to get there.

It describes the expectations we have of you 
and the ways in which our high performance and 
#TeamSK culture will help you succeed in your 
career at the Council. 

The Strategy is designed to evolve with the 
needs of the Council and our employees. The 
Human Resources team will work with senior 
management to develop the framework and drive 
the evolution of the  
People Strategy.

We want every employee to own our People 
Strategy and play a role in its success.  We 
will continually measure progress against the 
People Strategy’s objectives using a variety of 
means, including employee and stakeholder 
opinion surveys, appraisals and a dashboard of 
key performance indicators. Improvements will 
be made to the strategy as needed along our 
journey.

People Strategy Aim
People and Strategy  
Objectives

Equality, Diversity 
and Inclusion
To improve the equality, 
diversity and inclusion of the 
organisation

Recruitment
To attract the right 
people and retain them

Development
To develop high-performing 
individuals and teams

Engagement
To strengthen employee 
engagement, creating an 
inspired workforce

Reward and 
Recognition
Attracting and motivating 
our people with an attractive 
reward offer including pay 
and non-pay elements

Wellbeing
Providing a safe and healthy 
working environment for our 
people

22



5

At #TeamSK  we have a set of core values 
that determine how we behave and deliver our 
services to our residents and businesses. They 
also determine our culture and how we interact 
with each other. 

The core values focus on:

¢ Accountability, which means ensuring that 
everyone at every level is responsible for 
what they do and takes ownership for their 
actions and decisions.

¢ Flexibility, which means working in different 
ways, at different times and in different 
places, to meet the needs of our residents 
and businesses.

¢ Agility, which means working together to get 
the job done, using our skills to get the best 
outcome for our residents and businesses. 

¢ Equity, which means ensuring that we 
treat each other with respect, irrespective 
of rank, position or status. This echoes our 
commitment to provide consistently good 
services to both our internal and external 
customers.

¢ Networking, which means that, as a council, 
we recognise that ours is not the only voice 
or opinion. We embrace the views of others 
and use formal and informal networks 
to improve performance and ensure the 
solutions we deliver meet the needs of our 
customers.

¢ Always learning, which means sharing 
knowledge, skills and expertise to enable the 
council to go from strength to strength and 
learn from everything we do.

¢ Talent, which means harnessing the incredible 
ability that is within the council and valuing the 
contribution that everyone can make.

How you contribute to  
#TeamSK  Vision

#TeamSK   
Vision

Individual
Objectives

Service/
Team Plans

Head of  
Service Plan

People 
Strategy

Corporate Plan

High performance and your own 
objectives are supported through a 
‘golden thread approach’, so that 
you understand the impact you 
have on achieving the Councils 

vision and priorities. 

23



6

Where are we now
In our recruitment advertising we actively promote 
the Council’s attractiveness as a district, its 
accessibility through its excellent travel links and 
its ambitions to be the best council in which to 
live, work and visit.

We actively encourage flexible and agile working 
and believe that your work/life balance is 
important and vital to your success and happiness 
in the workplace.  We are committed to caring 
for our employees both inside and outside the 
workplace and provide a variety of benefits.

As well as basic pay and benefits, the following 
practices have been shown to play a positive role 
in improving retention:

¢ Being flexible
¢ Treating people fairly
¢ Paying attention to employee well-being
¢ Enabling career development and 

progression 
¢ Consulting employees
¢ Onboarding programme, including a new 

starter buddy system

We already offer all of these at SKDC, but need 
to keep them under review to meet the changing 
needs of the workforce.
To achieve our commitment to diversity and 
inclusion, we have reviewed and developed our 
recruitment processes, including our on-line 
recruitment module, to remove the potential for 
unconscious bias.

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a huge impact 
on the workforce and the needs and wants of 
employees, and these should be considered in 
planning a future workplace that meets the needs 
of the business and our staff.

One of the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic 
is a reduced labour market with less people with 
the right skills and experiences for the roles we 
offer.  There are some key areas and roles across 
the organisation where this has proved to be a 
particular challenge. These include Environmental 
Health Officers and HGV Drivers, where there is 
also a national shortage. 

To attract the right people and retain them
Recruitment

24



7

Where do we want to be?
We want to build a good employer brand with 
South Kesteven District Council seen as an 
employer of choice, where people want to be 
part of #TeamSK. Our ambition is to provide 
continuous learning and talent management to 
help our employees develop and adapt their 
capabilities and career prospects in a rapidly 
changing world. 

We want to ensure new appointees quickly 
feel part of #TeamSK, living the values and 
behaviours of the organisation.

We want to identify future skills shortages and 
develop our own candidate pipelines, examples 

such as use of the Apprenticeship Levy and other 
internal development initiatives.

We want to monitor and analyse our recruitment 
data to identify where focus might be needed.  
For example, turnover rates to identify retention 
issues or recruitment activity to increase the 
diversity and selection pool of candidates.
Provide career development opportunities 
and apprenticeships to attract talent to the 
organisation.

We want to develop the ability to redeploy 
resources in a flexible way to respond to 
emerging national/service needs.

How do we get there?
We will keep our recruitment methods under 
review to ensure vacancies are reaching talented 
people with the right skills. We will commit to 
diversifying our recruitment strategies thorugh 
the use of innovative and cost-effective methods 
to attract a wider pool of applicants and increase 
the use of digital technology and social media to 
simplify and improve the candidate experience 
during the hiring process. We will showcase our 
culture, benefits and employee stories on our 
vacancies pages to encourage more applicants. 

Make greater efforts to design roles which make the 
greatest use of each person’s skills and experiences 
and offer more variety to retain our people.

Ensure our reward offer is attractive, fair 
and competitive within the labour market by 
using a combination of job evaluation, salary 
benchmarking and where relevant, applying 
market supplements to attract high quality 
applicants.

Focus on difficult-to-recruit roles, with key 
elements being the development of succession 
and retention plans to identify possible methods 
of filling roles, or reviewing service delivery 
together with greater targeting of promotion and 
advertising of such roles. This will be identified 
through annual and ongoing workforce planning 
activities.

Increase the use of apprenticeships and career 
development roles to ‘grow our own’ for those 
hard-to-recruit to roles.

Use data from our HR dashboard and workforce 
development plans to ensure we have the right 
skills in place for the future.  

Understand turnover rates across the 
organisation and benchmark to see how it 
compares to other organisations and national 
trends, and identify any areas where there is high 
turnover. Make effective use of exit interviews to 
understand why people leave and whether we 
need to review any of our employment practices.

Ensure the recruitment process is followed up by 
a first-class onboarding experience, enhancing 
the reputation of the Council as an excellent 
employer.

25



8

Where are we now
We provide a wide range of training to support 
the learning and development needs of our staff. 
Qualifications for specific roles such as Chartered 
Institute of Housing for housing and project 
management training are also supported.

Mandatory fire safety, display screen equipment 
and data protection training form part of the 
induction process with the requirement for regular 
update training to be completed. 

The appraisal process is a key mechanism by 
which individual performance is to be prioritised, 
monitored and recognised and is a key 
component of the council’s overall performance 
management framework. The appraisal process 

ensures that the council’s corporate objectives 
and priorities are translated into personal 
objectives. 
 
Annual appraisals give line managers and their 
staff an opportunity to review performance and 
to agree learning and development requirements 
and opportunities, which will help to achieve 
the level of competence defined within their job 
description.  They allow managers to ensure staff 
are sufficiently supported and developed to help 
them to meet the demands of their job.

Apprenticeships are used across the organisation 
to provide development opportunities that will 
support workforce development plans.

To develop high-performing individuals and teams
Development

26



9

Where do we want to be?
For South Kesteven District Council to be 
successful, it must have; 

¢ A highly developed, highly trained and highly 
motivated workforce

¢ A robust succession planning process 
in place to fill skills gaps and maintain 
a workforce that can deliver against the 
Council’s priorities

¢ It must understand the value that 
apprenticeships, graduate schemes, and 
other national employment initiatives, bring 

to the organisation and actively encourage 
the use of these to fill vacant posts

¢ Career development opportunities for both 
new and existing staff to grow talent across 
the organisation to futureproof the workforce, 
with clear plans in place for those hard to fill 
roles

How do we get there?
Implementation of a new workforce development 
tool that works together with annual appraisals, 
and learning and development meetings to plan 
for the future and recognise our high performers 
and those with potential. 

Introduce a Learning Management System (LMS) 
that will support the training and development 
of our employees, providing access to materials 
for remote working. The LMS enables training 
records to be monitored, managed and viewed all 
in one place. 

Use the LMS to support the induction of new 
employees to #TeamSK , providing training and 
courses from Day 1 for employees, and helping 
to welcome them into #TeamSK . 

A wide range of mandatory and optional courses 
will be available to employees as well, to help 
develop their skills and progression. Such 
courses include, but are not limited to, IT course, 
departmental specific courses, and legislative 
courses - all available online and tutor lead via 
the LMS. 

These interventions will help develop a robust 
and skilled workforce with the right skills and 
behaviours. 

Ensure the recruitment process is followed up by 
a first-class onboarding experience, enhancing 
the reputation of the Council as an excellent 
employer.

27



10

Where are we now
How we interact with our employees is a key 
focus for us here at SKDC.

Employee engagement has been a challenge 
for many organisations during the Covid-19 
pandemic.  We as a Council have tried 
to maintain the momentum of employee 
engagement throughout regular communication, 
such as Wellbeing Wednesday, Fun Fridays and 
weekly emails from the Leader of the Council and 
the Chief Executive.

There are opportunities for our employees to 
express their views and have an employee 
voice. This can be done by one-to-one meetings 
with line managers, annual appraisals, and the 
annual surveys and pulse surveys in the future, 
particularly around Mental Health. 

Feedback from the 2020 annual survey on 
communications and engagement led to the 
development of an internal communications 
strategy, the review of the existing intranet 

and website together with the creation of a 
development plan and an increased focus on 
regular engagement.

The reason for doing Survey is is that it is such 
an important exercise and your honest opinions 
really do matter. The more people who take 
part, the better our impression is of how you are 
feeling.

Communications from the Leader of the Council 
and the Chief Executive continue to form a key 
part of employee engagement ensuring that staff 
are informed about key topics, and providing 
recognition of customer compliment plus 
highlighting where staff have gone above and 
beyond expectations.

We work positively with the trade unions to ensure 
there is two way communication, covering topics 
such as organisational change and engagement.

To strengthen employee engagement, creating 
an inspired workforce

Engagement

28



11

Where do we want to be?
We want employees to really feel part of 
#TeamSK and feel that their voice and 
contributions matter.

Encouraging and motivating our people who are 
actively engaged with the aims of the Council 
with opportunities to contribute to future direction, 
decision making and the community of the 
Council as a whole.

To build on the partnership working between 
the trade unions and management to support 
employee engagement and positive employee 
relations.

How do we get there?
Involve all staff in the development of staff 
engagement improvements in the future, with 
areas of focus identified from the annual surveys 
that are completed. 

Continue to evolve partnership with trade 
unions, managers and staff, all working as one 
for #TeamSK . 

Continue to get views from staff on their 
experience of the workplace and how this can 
be improved upon, making sure to share those 
positive messages and ‘good news’ stories to 
staff, linking in with the recognition element. 

Ensure good employee relations and 
engagement are encouraged through openness 
and integrity.

Carry out regular surveys, and snapshots 
surveys, to get a true understanding of how 
employees feel and put in robust measures/
practices to improve on any issues raised.

29



12

Where are we now
We believe that an inclusive workplace, where 
employees are treated with dignity and respect 
is everyone’s responsibility. We have policies in 
place to support this and survey our employees 
regularly to help us understand how we are 
performing in the engagement, leadership and 
communication with our employees; and to 
identify ways in which we could do better.

In the simplest of terms, diversity and inclusion 
encompass a group of unique individuals who 
acquaint and integrate with one another, but 
each are entirely different concepts with separate 
benefits. Workplaces that prioritise diversity and 
inclusion efforts have been statistically proven 
to be safer, happier and more productive work 
environments.

Diversity incorporates all of the elements that 
make individuals unique from one another, and 
while there are infinite differences in humans, 
most of us subconsciously define diversity by a 
few social categories, such as gender, race, age 
and so forth.

Inclusion although often used in tandem with 
diversity, is a concept of its own. Inclusion is 
the practice of providing everyone with equal 
access to opportunities and resources. Inclusion 
efforts in the workplace help to give traditionally 
marginalised groups, like those based on gender, 
race or even those with physical or mental 
disabilities, a means for them to feel equal in the 
workplace.

We define equality as being about fairness 
– ensuring that we are all treated equitably 
regardless of our background or identity.

To increase the equality and diversity  
of the organisation

Equality, Diversity 
and Inclusion

30



13

Where do we want to be?
Diversity and Inclusion is essential to an effective 
organisation having a healthy mix of employees 
from different backgrounds, experiences and 
cultures provides us with a balance of voices and 
diversity of thought and is representative of our 
residents.

Organisations that embrace diversity and 
inclusion normally find the following benefits in 
culture and performance.

¢ Reduced staff grievances
¢ Reduced staff turnover
¢ Increased staff development
¢ Improved customer service and satisfaction 

through greater understanding of our customers
¢ Improved links between employee  

activities and strategic objectives
¢ Improved culture, attitudes, behaviours  

and conduct
¢ Improved recruitment marketing 

opportunities
¢ Greater innovation and creativity

We want recruitment and human resource 
processes in place which support the collation 
and understanding of equalities information 
that we gather, alongside ensuring that there is 
equality of opportunity and access to information 
relating to employment and the development of 
our employees.

We want to ensure that the workforce has a clear 
understanding of equality and diversity through 
the provision of effective training.

We want to ensure that all policies, strategies 
and procedures take equality and diversity issues 
into consideration. that we gather, alongside 
ensuring that there is equality of opportunity and 
access to information relating to employment and 
the development of our employees.

We want to ensure that the workforce has a clear 
understanding of equality and diversity through 
the provision of effective training.

We want to ensure that all policies, strategies 
and procedures take equality and diversity issues 
into consideration. 

How do we get there?
Utilise workforce data to help identify areas for 
improvement in the diversity and skills of our 
workforce to seek equality of representation at all 
levels across the organisation.

Develop and deliver against an action plan to 
specifically address the council’s gender pay 
gap to form part of the work programme of the 
Employment Committee.

Demonstrate a positive culture with strong 
leadership and organisational commitment to 
improving equality outcomes.

Review and refresh our equality and diversity 

training for staff and elected members.

Look at ways to increase the diversity of our 
workforce, to ensure it reflects the demographics 
of our district. One of the actions we have taken 
to achieve this is to remove the potential of 
unconscious bias, by implementing Name Blind 
Recruitment as part of our process.

Carry out Equality Analysis of all council policies 
to ensure they are fair and non-discriminatory.
 
Support the set up and development of the 
Equalities Champions group. 

31



14

Where are we now
Currently staff enjoy an attractive reward offer 
of a career average earnings Pension scheme 
(benefitting from employer contributions, life 
cover and ill health protections), generous leave 
entitlements and access to a range of other 
employee benefits such as Cycle to Work and 
Childcare Voucher schemes. 

Opportunities are available for flexible working to 
support work/life balance.

We have a generous sickness scheme which 
provides financial support to staff during period of 
ill health.

Recognition of staff loyalty and commitment is 

rewarded through a programme of long  
service awards. 

Our benefits include:

¢ A generous pension scheme
¢ Payment of professional fees
¢ Free car parking
¢ Access to a range of health and wellbeing 

activities
¢ Salary sacrifice schemes – cycle to work, car 

leasing and computerscheme
¢ Travel season ticket loan and a variety 

of other staff/family friendly benefits and 
discounts

¢ Annual leave purchase scheme 
¢ Opportunities to progress and develop your 

career and skillset

Attracting and motivating our people with 
an attractive reward offer including pay and 
non-pay elements

Reward and Recognition

32



15

Where do we want to be?
Ensure our approach to reward is fair and 
transparent, sustainable, market relevant and 
understood by the workforce. 

Promote our reward package to attract high 
performing candidates to apply for vacant posts.

Development of a competitive reward and 
recognition package – and celebration of 
successes in the organisation.

Have a comprehensive Wellbeing offer, 
incorporating employee benefits which support 
our staff.

How do we get there?
Ensure that our approach to pay and reward 
support the objectives of the People Strategy to 
ensure that we can deliver “a flexible, innovative 
organisation” that has the “skills, resilience and 
motivation to deliver and achieve the Council’s 
objectives”.

Implement a review of the existing pay and other 
reward elements of terms and conditions. 

Clearly communicate and promote our reward 
offer so that current and prospective staff 
understand the elements which make up our 
reward packages.

Identify further opportunities to promote and 
enhance employee benefits, reward and 
recognition.

Develop an annual staff award scheme 
to celebrate success and build employee 
engagement.

Review job descriptions annually to ensure they 
are reflective of the role and paid fairly, reviewing  
through the job evaluation process where there 
are significant changes.

Ensure our approach to reward is fair and 
transparent, sustainable, market relevant 
and understood by the workforce

33



16

Where are we now
The health, safety and wellbeing of our staff is 
key to having a happy, engaged and productive 
workforce. This has been particularly highlighted 
by the challenges faced by our staff and new 
ways of working during the Covid-19 pandemic.

SKDC provides a safe, healthy working 
environment through effective induction, 
supportive line management with additional 
support from Health & Safety and HR partners, 
sickness absence management, wellbeing 
initiatives and access to Occupational Health, 
counselling and an Employee Assistance 
Programme for all staff. 

Since the onset of Covid-19 we have had an 
increased focus on mental health and continue to 
work to deliver against our mental health action 
plan.  This has included mental health training 
for managers and staff, training of additional 
first aiders for mental health as well as refresher 
training for our existing first aiders, and provision 
of bespoke training to help staff cope with 
increased customer demand.

A range of wellbeing initiatives has been rolled out 
to staff, including virtual sessions on mindfulness, 
mental health and resilience, virtual workshops 
promoting the Council’s Employee Assistance 
Programme (EAP), GP-led virtual workshops on 
diet, weight loss management and smoking and 
virtual cookery lessons.

SKDC is adopting and delivering the Mental 
Health Challenge part of the SKDC Corporate 
Plan 2020-23.  One of the areas of focus for the 
Mental Health Challenge is ‘Supporting SKDC 
Employees and Members’.  The agreed actions 
include first aiders for mental health, mandatory 
training for all staff, raising awareness of our offer 
and bespoke training to support officers.

A wide range of menopause support has been 
provided which staff can access, together with 
menopause café sessions which provide a great 
opportunity for staff to connect, offer support, 
learn, listen, and share.  Guidance is also 
available to assist managers in supporting staff.

Providing a safe and healthy working 
environment for our people

Wellbeing

34



17

Where do we want to be?
To maintain a healthy, productive workforce 
where staff feel motivated and engaged. 

Have clear and effective routes to mental health 
and wellbeing support available so that staff are 
confident that help is always available. 

Gain a better understanding of the mental health 
of the organisation and continue to review and 
act upon staff feedback. 

Develop a culture where staff talk openly about 
mental health and are empowered to provide 
their own input into mental health and wellbeing 
support so that this is shaped by their needs.

Better understand reasons for absence across 
the organisation so that we can better support 
employees’  physical and mental health and 
reduce sickness absence levels, particularly 
focusing on the top reasons for absence.

How do we get there?
Future plans include working with national mental 
health charity MIND to deliver mandatory online 
training for all staff and managers hosted on 
the Council’s Learning Management System 
(LMS). Training will aim to provide staff with 
greater mental health awareness and will include 
practical tips for building resilience and having 
sensitive conversations with colleagues. Manager 
training will build the confidence of managers 
in supporting their teams’ mental health and 
encourage them to tackle mental health stigma 
within their service areas.

Work with partners to provide health initiatives, 
such as Health MOT’s to include blood pressure 
checks and monitor weight and height to help 
employees make informed choices to improve 
their physical health.

Ensure our first aiders for mental health continue 
to undertake regular refresher training to 
renew their skills and update their knowledge 
of available mental health support. Continue 
to review staff engagement with first aiders for 
mental health by service area to ensure that 
additional first aiders are trained if necessary.

 Carry out pulse surveys to continue to monitor 
the mental health of the organisation and the 
wellbeing needs of staff and create positive 
actions as a result of these.

We will continue to monitor sickness absence 
and maintain a focus on completion of timely 
and effective return to work interviews.  We will 
analyse the data from return to work interviews to 
help inform future initiatives to support the health 
and wellbeing of our staff.  

Provide timely absence information to managers 
and absence management training to support 
them in dealing with sickness absence.  

Work closely with our occupational health 
provider to support our absence management 
processes. 

Continue to explore opportunities to provide 
menopause support to staff and keep up to date 
with national initiatives and legislative changes.

35



18

Delivering and 
Monitoring  
our Strategy

How will we know how well we are doing?

Progress towards the aims of the People Strategy will be monitored via quarterly reporting as part of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan.

The People Strategy will be regularly reviewed by the Employment Committee and Corporate 
Management Team. 

Relevant people reports, such as the HR Dashboard report, will also be reviewed, ensuring 
that the People Strategy remains a live tool to signpost future activity and forms the basis for
review of people and performance indicators.

We will use a number of internal and external measures to monitor the success and
progress of our People Strategy, including:

 employee feedback from staff opinion survey results

 customer feedback

 diversity statistics

 staff turnover rates

 sickness absence levels

 disciplinary and grievances levels

The People Strategy will be reviewed annually and aligned with agreed Corporate Plan Actions and 
Key Performance Indicators.

36



19
37



Contact Details
Alternative formats are available on request: 

audio, large print and Braille
 

South Kesteven District Council
01476 40 60 80 

*hr@southkesteven.gov.uk 
8www.southkesteven.gov.uk

03
47

8R
T_

1.
22

38



 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

People Strategy 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Service Area: 
 
Human Resources 

Lead officer:  
 
Sam Fitt / Jane Jenkinson 
  

Date of Meeting  
 
10/12/21 

Assessors: 
 
Alan Robinson 
 

Neutral Assessor: 
 
Carol Drury 
 

Appendix 2 

39



 

 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

People Strategy 2022 – 2025  
 
This Strategy sets out the Council’s aims in attracting, developing and 
retaining our most valuable asset – the people that work here. 
 
This strategy replaces the previous People Strategy 2017-2021 
 
The Council’s Corporate Plan (2020 – 2023) identifies that it needs to 
develop a people strategy to support the retention and attraction of high 
quality staff. This Strategy sets out a positive vision and clear way forward 
to achieve ways of engaging and developing employees at South Kesteven 
District Council and aims to recruit high performing individuals to join 
TeamSK.  
 
The Strategy has been developed in line with the Council’s Equality and 
Diversity Annual Position Statement. 
 
The Council, has an Equality and Diversity Policy for its employees 
currently which covers the Council’s responsibilities under the Equality Act 
2010 to ensure that fair and equitable services are provided to suit the 
needs of our employees. 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a new or existing policy?  New  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

40



 

 

 

2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive, or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality 
Group 

Does this 
policy/service/func
tion/ 
strategy have a 
positive or 
negative impact on 
any of the equality 
groups?  
 
Please state which 
for each group 

Please describe why the impact is positive 
or negative. 
If you consider this policy etc is not 
relevant to a specific characteristic, 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

Positive  The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
 
One of the actions that the People Strategy 
refers to is looking at developing and bringing 
in more apprentices where we can, and 
encouraging managers to consider it for 
vacancies. Apprenticeships do not mean that 
only young people can obtain one, there is no 
cap on the age, but it does provide a way for 
younger applicants with no experience to be 
able to join the workforce. As part of our 
recruitment and selection process, a staff 
requisition form must be completed for every 
role. On this staff requisition form, it asks 
Managers whether this role can be filled by 
an apprentice, encouraging managers to 
consider this.  
The recruitment process can be found here 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandl
er.ashx?id=27128&p=0 
 
 
 

41

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27128&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27128&p=0


 

 

 

The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.  
  
 
 

Disability 
 

 

Positive The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics). 
 
The Council is still part of the ‘Disability 
Confident Employer Scheme’ and this People 
Strategy continues to build on this by not 
discriminating against any persons, and 
making sure there is equal and fair 
opportunity for all.  
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/di
sability-confident-campaign 
 
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Race 
 

Positive 
 
 

The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
 
In the Employee Handbook, on Page 40, it 
details how it is the policy of SKDC to treat 
employees with respect and dignity, ensuring 
that employees and applicants are not 
victimised or subjected to harassment. SKDC 
seeks to select, promote, appraise and treat 
all employees according to relevant aptitudes 

42

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/disability-confident-campaign
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/disability-confident-campaign


 

 

 

and skills. All employees shall be given equal 
access to training, development, and career 
opportunities. The link to the handbook can 
be found here  
http://monty/index.aspx?articleid=14453 
 
The People Strategy makes reference to how 
we will utilise workforce data to help identify 
areas for improvement in the diversity and 
skills of our workforce to seek equality of 
representation at all levels across the 
organisation. We will look at ways to increase 
the diversity of our workforce, to ensure it 
reflects the demographics of our district 
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Gender 
Reassignme
nt 
 
   

Positive The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Religion or 
Belief   

Positive The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
In the Employee Handbook, on Page 40, it 
details how it is the policy of SKDC to treat 
employees with respect and dignity, ensuring 
that employees and applicants are not 
victimised or subjected to harassment. SKDC 

43

http://monty/index.aspx?articleid=14453


 

 

 

seeks to select, promote, appraise and treat 
all employees according to relevant aptitudes 
and skills. All employees shall be given equal 
access to training, development, and career 
opportunities. The link to the handbook can 
be found here  
http://monty/index.aspx?articleid=14453 
 
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Sex 
 
 
   

Positive The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
One of the elements that is in the People 
Strategy is around developing and delivering 
against an action plan to specifically address 
the Authority’s gender pay gap which forms 
part of the work programme of the Council’s 
Employment Committee. 
The link to the Gender Pay gap information 
and action plan can be found here  
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandl
er.ashx?id=27576&p=0 
 
http://monty/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27850&p
=0    (page 5 onwards) 
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Positive  The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 

44

http://monty/index.aspx?articleid=14453
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27576&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27576&p=0
http://monty/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27850&p=0
http://monty/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=27850&p=0


 

 

 

Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
In the Employee Handbook, on Page 40, it 
details how it is the policy of SKDC to treat 
employees with respect and dignity, ensuring 
that employees and applicants are not 
victimised or subjected to harassment. SKDC 
seeks to select, promote, appraise and treat 
all employees according to relevant aptitudes 
and skills. All employees shall be given equal 
access to training, development, and career 
opportunities. The link to the handbook can 
be found here  
http://monty/index.aspx?articleid=14453 
 
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Pregnancy 
and 
Maternity 
 
 

Positive The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics). One of the policies that 
underpins this Strategy is the Pregnancy and 
Maternity Policy found here 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandl
er.ashx?id=24517&p=0 which details how the 
Council supports its employees. The People 
Strategy will continue to support this in part of 
its engagement and care for our employees.  
 
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Marriage 
and Civil 
Partnership 

Relates specifically 
to employment law, 
however, persons of 
all protected 
characteristics will 
be positively impact 

The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 

45

http://monty/index.aspx?articleid=14453
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24517&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24517&p=0


 

 

 

by providing 
opportunities for 
everyone to be 
more active, more 
often. 
 

The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Carers Positive The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 
The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
The Strategy highlights how we actively 
encourage flexible and agile working and 
believe that your work/life balance is 
important and vital to your success and 
happiness in the workplace.  We are 
committed to caring for our employees both 
inside and outside the workplace. The flexible 
working approach means we as a Council 
can support those who provide care to others 
outside of work. The flexible working policy 
can be found here 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandl
er.ashx?id=24542&p=0 
The scheme is designed to assist employees 
to  
accommodate variations to their working 
day/week and  
also to their place of work 
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

Other 
Groups (e.g. 
those from 
deprived 
(IMD*) 
communitie

Positive The Strategy sets out the aims and objectives 
of the Council in terms of how it engages, 
and treats employees in terms of equality and 
diversity.  
 

46

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24542&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24542&p=0


 

 

 

s; those 
from rural 
communitie
s, those with 
an offending 
past) 
 
*(IMD = 
Indices of 
multiple 
deprivation) 
 

The strategy is underpinned by a range of HR 
policies and procedures, that are compliant 
with legislation regarding Equality and 
Diversity (including all of the protected 
characteristics).  
 
The People Strategy and the way we deliver 
it will promote equal opportunities and 
promotes the benefits of a diverse workforce.   
 

General 
comments 

The aim of this People Strategy is to create a flexible, innovative 
organisation that has the skills, resilience and motivation to deliver 
and achieve the Council’s objective and is a key component in 
driving high performance 
  
The Strategy sets out:  
 
• where we are now;  
• where we want to be; and  
• how we plan to get there. 
 
The Strategy is designed to grow and evolve along with the needs 
of the Council and our people.   
 
One major new process that is mentioned in the People Strategy, 
and brings in a positive impact on all of the groups above is “blind 
recruitment” into our recruitment system. This will mean that any 
applicants who apply to work for the Council will have their name, 
age, dates of when they attended school, and other identifying 
features hidden from recruiting managers thereby removing the 
possibility of unconscious bias in the recruitment and selection 
process. All of an applicant’s personal information is already hidden, 
so this builds on that. As well as bringing in blind recruitment, the 
Council will continue to follow its Recruitment and Selection Policy / 
Procedures, which references the Equality Act 2010, which all 
workplaces must follow. The link to the procedure can be found here 
- 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16761&p=
0 
 
As a result of the strategy focussing on the employees themselves, 
there is a main theme identified in the strategy itself of Equality and 
Diversity. Many of the characteristics above appear under the 
Equality Act 2010, which the Council already complies with, 
regarding its employees. This Strategy reinforces the measures and 
policies we already have, and introduces ways in which the Council 
will build on them, to bring in more fairness in terms of equality and 
diversity in the workplace.  

47

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16761&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16761&p=0


 

 

 

 
 
 

 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 

One of the aims of the People Strategy, particularly in the Equality and 
Diversity theme is to “Look at ways to increase the diversity of our 
workforce, to ensure it reflects the demographics of our district.”  The HR 
department has access to employees personal information, and can 
therefore create a picture of how our workforce demographics reflect that 
of our District demographics. This is further demonstrated in the Equality 
and Diversity Annual Position Statement which contains information on our 
workforce and the on the demographics of South Kesteven.  From this 
document we have a picture of the make up of our staff and the district and 
can identify areas of underrepresentation that need to be addressed. 

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 

There was a drive from the HR department for employees to fill out their 
personal information details on their self service records, in order for us to 
have all the information we need to be able to monitor against district, and 
national levels. These drives will continue, and for new starters, the 
information they complete on the new recruitment module (including their 
personal information) will automatically be copied across. During the 
application process, applicants are informed why their personal data is 
being collected, and there is a declaration tick box to confirm they are 
happy for us to collect this data for the purposes intended. It is important to 
note however that employees are not being forced to fill out this 
information. It is entirely their choice to fill it out, with the benefits of doing 
so, and why they should do so explained to them.  
 
If employees fill out this information, it will help HR monitor the diversity of 
the organisation, which then means we can reflect on whether the 
measures introduced in this People Strategy are correct and working, or if 
more needs to be done.  
 

 

48



 

 

 

4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 
required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

  

 

 
 

49



 

 

 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Sam Fitt / Jane Jenkinson 
(Name and title)   Project Lead / Senior HR Officer 
  
Date completed:  09/12/21  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title)   Senior Community Development Officer 
 
Date signed off:      14th December 2021 

50



 

 

 

Employment 
Committee 
19 January 2022 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

 Cabinet Member for People & Safer Communities 

         
  

Pay Policy Statement 2022-23 

It is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that the Council produces an annual pay policy 
statement. This statement summarises current policies and arrangements already in place relating 
to pay – as such the Pay Policy Statement is one of fact. The Pay Policy Statement is approved 
each year by Council as part of the budget setting and approval process. 
 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 

Tel: 01476 406137 

Email: j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 17 December 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 5 January 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason (Cabinet Member for People 
& Safer Communities) 

6 January 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That the Employment Committee agrees the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23, to be 
submitted to full Council for approval 

 

51

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Council’s Pay Policy Statement is reviewed annually to ensure that it accurately 

reflects the Council’s position and is aligned with the outcomes and objectives of the 

Council’s Corporate Plan. 

1.2 A review of the Pay Policy Statement has been carried out to ensure compliance with the 

requirements of the Localism Act 2011.   

1.3 The key changes include the updating of the posts included under the definition of officers 

covered by the Pay Policy Statement (paragraph 4).   

1.4 The Pay Policy Statement refers to the collective agreement that the Council has in place 

for local cost of living pay awards and the fact that we determine these pay awards locally 

for all staff, based on this agreement. 

1.5 The Pay Policy Statement details the Council’s decision to adopt the Real Living Wage in 

March 2021 and sets out the pay increase arrangements for our lowest grade and a 

number of other lower grades which are impacted by the Real Living Wage increase.  It 

also sets out that these pay increases are an alternative to the annual cost of living pay 

award and not in addition to.  

1.6 The Pay Policy Statement makes reference under paragraph 8.11 to a review of pay and 

reward arrangements that is taking place.  There were some management staffing 

changes within the HR team which has had an impact on the progress of the pay review 

work.   The HR Manager post has proved difficult to recruit to and a specialist recruitment 

agency is currently supporting the Council to recruit to this vacant post.  It is expected that 

the role will be filled in the early part of 2022, and this will provide the capacity to progress 

the pay review work. Work has commenced on the scoping of the review to ensure that all 

relevant matters are considered.   

1.7 The purpose of the review is to ensure that our approach to pay and reward supports the 

objectives of the People Strategy to ensure that we can deliver “a flexible, innovative 

organisation” that has the “skills, resilience and motivation to deliver and achieve the 

Council’s objectives”. 

2 Available Options Considered 

2.1 It is a requirement that the Council publishes an annual Pay Policy Statement and no 

other options have been considered. 

3 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

3.1 The reason for the recommendation is to satisfy a legislative requirement 

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

4.1 Following its approval by Employment Committee, the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 will 

be submitted to full Council for approval. 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 The financial considerations of the Pay Policy Statement are incorporated into the budget 

setting proposals for 2022/23 and these proposals will be presented to Council for 

approval on 3 March 2022.  Employee costs are the largest financial element of the 

budget and it is important that salary budgets and staffing resourcing requirements are 

kept under regular review.  The Pay Policy Statement references that two senior posts are 

52



 

 
 

currently subject to pay protection following the corporate restructure (approved October 

2020) and these are budgeted accordingly.  

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance & 

s151 Officer  

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Article 13.4.4(vi) of the Council’s Constitution, which sets out the remit of the Employment 

Committee states one of its functions is the review of the annual Pay Policy and 

recommending it to Council for approval in order that it can be published. The Council is 

required to produce and publish a pay policy statement for each financial year under 

Sections 38-39 of the Localism Act 2011. The Council must have regard to guidance 

issued by the Secretary of State under Section 40 of the Localism Act 2011. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Deputy Monitoring Officer 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 Council is asked to agree a factual statement. Any changes that affect the substance of 

the Pay Policy Statement would be subject to equality analysis. 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 There are no significant risk implications associated with the proposals. 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 There are no crime and disorder implications associated with the proposals above. 

10 Background Papers 

10.1 Pay Policy Statement 2021-22:  

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26281&p=0 

10.2 Employee Handbook Secondment Factsheet 

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24541&p=0 

11 Appendices 

11.1 Appendix 1 – Draft Pay Policy Statement 2022-2023 

11.2 Appendix 2 – Definitions of Chief Officer 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by:  Not applicable 

Final Decision date   3 March 2022 

 

53

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26281&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24541&p=0


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

0 
 

  

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 

2022 / 2023 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

55



 
 

1 
 

CONTENTS PAGE   

   

   

1. Introduction   

   

2. Legislation   

   

3. Scope   

   

4. Definition of officers covered by the Pay Policy Statement   

   

5. Chief Executive Pay   

   

6. Chief Officer Pay Determination   

   

7. Lowest Paid Employees   

   

8. Pay Determination Arrangements   

   

9. Allowances   

   

10. Apprentices   

   

11. Local Government Pension Scheme   

   

12. Pay Multipliers   

   

13. Termination Payments   

   

14. Re-engagement of employees   

   

15. Gender Pay Gap Reporting   

 

  

56



 
 

2 
 

 

1 Introduction   

   

1.1. South Kesteven District Council recognises that remuneration at all levels needs to 

enable the Council to attract and retain high quality employees dedicated to the 

service of the public.    

 

1.2. It is important that local authorities are able to determine their own pay structures in 

order to address their strategic aims and to compete in the local and national 

market.   

 

1.3. It is recognised that senior management roles in local government are complex and 

diverse functions in a highly politicised environment.  The Council’s ability to 

continue to attract and retain high calibre leaders capable of delivering this complex 

agenda, particularly during times of financial challenge, is crucial.   

 

1.4. The Council may amend the pay policy statement at any point in the year.   

   

   

2. Legislation   

 

2.1. Sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011 require local authorities to produce a 

Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.   

 

2.2. The Act and supporting statutory guidance provide details of matters that must be 

included in this statutory pay policy but also recognises that each local authority has 

the autonomy to determine its own pay structures and pay policies. The Pay Policy 

must be formally approved by Full Council by the end of March each year. It can be 

amended in year and must be published on the authority’s website. It must be 

complied with when setting terms and conditions for Chief Officers as defined in the 

Act.    

   

   

 3.   Scope   

   

3.1. This Pay Policy Statement includes a policy on:   

   

• The level and elements of remuneration for the Chief Executive     

• The remuneration of the lowest paid employee   

• The relationship between the remuneration of Chief Officers1 and other officers   

• Other specific aspects of Chief Officer remuneration such as fees, charges and 

other discretionary payments.   

   

   

3.2. Remuneration in this context is defined widely to include not just pay but also charges, 

fees, allowances, benefits in kind, increases in enhancements of pension 

entitlements and termination payments.   

   

57



 
 

3 
 

   

4. Definition of officers covered by the Pay Policy Statement   

   

4.1 The definition of officers covered by this policy are detailed in Appendix 1 to the Pay 

Policy Statement.  For South Kesteven District Council the following posts are 

covered:   

  Head of the Paid Service, which in this authority is the post of:   

- Chief Executive   

   

Statutory Chief Officers, which in this authority are the posts of:   

   

- Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer)  

- Assistant Director of Finance (covering Section 151 responsibilities)   

 

 

  Non-statutory Chief Officers (those who report directly to the Head of the Paid Service) 

which in this authority are the posts of:   

   

- Director - Commercial and Operations   

- Director - Growth and Culture   

- Director – Housing and Property  

- Assistant Chief Executive (temporary until March 2022) 

 

Deputy Chief Officers, (those who report directly to a non-statutory or statutory Chief 

Officer) which in this authority are the posts of:   

   

- Assistant Director of Planning   

- Assistant Director of Operations and Public Protection  

- Assistant Director of Housing  

- Assistant Director – Finance 

- Head of Finance & IT (Deputy Section 151 Officer) 

- Head of Revenues & Benefits    

- Head of Democratic Services (Deputy Monitoring Officer)  

- Head of Leisure & Cultural Services 

- Head of Corporate Operations  

- HR Manager  

- Communications Manager 

- OD & Change & Business Support Manager 

 

Table 1  

  

Job Title   

   

FTE   Salary Band   

Chief Executive   1.0   £130,000 - £135,000   

58



 
 

4 
 

Deputy Chief Executive  1.0  £95,000 - £105,000  

Director – Commercial and Operations*  1.0    £100,000 - £105,000 

Director – Growth and Culture    1.0   £85,000 - £95,000   

Director – Housing and Property   1.0   £85,000 - £95,000   

Assistant Chief Executive** 1.0 £85,000 - £95,000 

Assistant Director – Operations and Public 

Protection  

1.0    £70,000 - £80,000   

Assistant Director – Housing 1.0  £70,000 - £80,000  

Assistant Director – Finance* 1.0 £100,000 - £105,000   

Head of Service   5.0  £50,000 - £65,000   

Service Manager 3.0 £40,000 - £50,000 

   

*These roles currently have pay protection arrangements in place and will revert to the 

pay grade for the role when pay protection ceases. 

** A proportion of these salary costs are paid by other Lincolnshire District Councils. 

 

The details shown above are based on the new management structure which was 

implemented in 2021 by the Council.   

  

4.2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils to publish the number of 

employees who are paid over £50,000 by job title using salary bands.  Historically at  

South Kesteven District Council these bands are published in the pay policy  

statement using a minimum range bracket of £5000, this is based on the Local 

Government Transparency Code 2015.  

  

4.3 Pay details for posts graded Service Manager or above are shown in Table 1. These 

will also be published on the Council’s website.     

   

   

  5.   Chief Executive Pay   

   

5.1. The Chief Executive in South Kesteven discharges the accountability of Head of Paid 

Service – a statutory role defined by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  

The Council determines the level of pay for its Chief Executive through the Employment 

Committee. The committee and its remit are contained in the Council’s constitution.   

   

5.2. The Chief Executive of South Kesteven District Council has been appointed as 

Returning Officer. The Returning Officer is an officer of the Council who is appointed 

under the Representation of the People Act 1983.  Whilst appointed by the Council, 

59



 
 

5 
 

the role of Returning Officer is one which involves and incurs personal responsibility 

and accountability and is statutorily separate from his/her duties as an employee of 

the Council.    

   

5.3. Special fees are paid for Returning Officer duties which are not part of the post 

holder’s substantive role. These fees are payable as required and can be made to 

any senior officer appointed to fulfil the statutory duties of this role.    

   

   

  6.   Chief Officer Pay Determination   

   

6.1. The Localism Act refers to Chief Officers. The Chief Officers at South Kesteven 

District Council are the following:   

   

- The Chief Executive who is Head of Paid Service, the Section151 Officer,   

- and the Monitoring Officer (the “Statutory Officers”),   

- Deputy Chief Executive  

- Directors  

- Assistant Chief Executive (temporary until March 2022) 

   

6.2 The Council does not have a separate pay policy in relation to Chief Officers.   

   

6.3  The Council pays its Chief Officers at rates based on job evaluation and these are 

detailed in the Council’s salary scale each year. The total remuneration package 

defined in employment contracts for the Chief Executive and Chief Officers is the 

same as all staff. It includes a spot rate salary or salary band, the same holiday 

entitlement based on length of service, the same sick pay arrangements, the same 

pension scheme arrangements and no enhanced remuneration elements are 

included.   

   

6.4  The Council publishes senior management salary rates and gender pay details on its 

website in line with the requirements of the Government’s transparency agenda.   

   

   

  7.   Lowest Paid Employees   

   

7.1. The lowest paid staff within the Council’s pay structure are on Grade 1.  For this 

reason we have chosen staff employed on Grade 1 as our definition of the ‘lowest 

paid’ for the purposes of this policy.  Grade 1 for 2021/2022 is £18,330 per annum.   

   

7.2. The terms and conditions of employment for Grade 1 staff are in accordance with 

collective agreements, negotiated from time to time, by the National Joint Council for 

Local Government Services, as set out in the Scheme of Conditions of Service 

(commonly known as Green Book).  These are supplemented by local collective 

agreements reached with the trade union recognised by the council and by the rules 

of the council.    

   

60



 
 

6 
 

  8.   Pay Determination Arrangements   

   

8.1. The level of pay for all staff is determined, except for the Chief Executive as set out in 

6.3, through the relevant job evaluation scheme. The job evaluation score determines 

the grade at which the employee is paid.   

   

8.2. The Council employs all staff on local terms and conditions. It has a collective 

agreement in place for local cost of living pay awards that is based upon pay reviews 

by the National Joint Council and Local Government Services (NJC).   

   

8.3. The Council makes its own determination of cost of living pay awards for all staff in 

accordance with this local agreement, taking account of the rate of inflation (current 

and Bank of England forecast), labour market conditions, the level of previous years’ 

cost of living awards and any specific budgetary constraints.   

   

8.4. Where salary bands are used, appointment within these will be based on an 

assessment against the levels of competency required for the role.   

   

8.5. The salary for newly appointed staff (including Chief Officers) is determined on 

appointment in relation to the job evaluation score for the post. The job evaluation 

score assumes full competence at the job. Where a new appointee for the job has 

some development needs, the Council may choose to place the employee on a 

salary progression until full competence has been confirmed or qualifications have 

been completed.   

   

8.6  In April 2021 the Council adopted the Real Living Wage to ensure that we pay a 

wage rate based on what people need to live.  It is calculated based on rising living 

costs. 

 

8.7 The Real Living Wage for 2021 was £9.50 per hour.  It is reviewed in November each 

year and for 2022 the Real Living Wage is £9.90 per hour.  There is an expectation 

the Real Living Wage increase will be implemented by May 2022. 

 

8.8 From 1 April 2022 Grade SK1 will be increased to £9.90 per hour.  A review of 

Grades SK2 to SK8 will also be carried and these will be increased in line with the 

Real Living Wage increase to ensure that there is sufficient differentiation between 

the grades.   

 

8.9 Pay grades which receive the Real Living Wage increase will not also receive the 

annual cost of living pay award agreed by the Council. 

   

8.10 The Council’s current pay and reward arrangements have been designed to ensure 

consistency through the job evaluation process and with reference to the external 

market.  

 

8.11 A review of pay and reward will be carried out during 2022/2023 to ensure that pay 

and reward arrangements enable us to attract and retain the right people and support 

61



 
 

7 
 

the Council to be able to deliver the corporate strategy and focus on growth, agility 

and competitiveness.     

   

8.12 The Council will monitor pay locally and nationally as required and will undertake 

market reviews in relation to specific posts. Where a post is hard to recruit to at any 

level, particularly where there are supply pressures, the Council has a process in 

place to consider applying market supplements, or to offer recruitment incentives. 

Market supplements will be reviewed annually and may be withdrawn if market 

conditions change.   

   

8.13 Local government elections and neighbourhood planning referendums are a separate 

statutory responsibility and rates of pay for local elections are set in accordance with 

a Lincolnshire Countywide election scale of fees and charges.  These rates differ 

according to the size of the ward contested.   

   

   

  9.   Allowances   

   

9.1  The Council will pay job related allowances to staff where it is a requirement of the 

job to do so. Staff who are required to respond to emergencies outside normal 

working hours are also currently in receipt of standby and call out arrangements, 

depending on the nature of the work.   

   

9.2  Overtime is payable at flat rate and can only be done with the prior approval of the 

line manager. Chief Officers and managers are required to work evenings and 

weekends to meet the requirements of the job and will not attract overtime. 

   

9.3  The Council does not pay essential car allowances or provide cars to any individual 

member of staff as the Council operates a pool car system available to all employees. 

Where the Chief Executive, Chief Officers or staff use their own cars for Council 

business they are reimbursed at a flat rate of 45p per mile in line with the HMRC 

guidelines. This practice will be reviewed as part of the overall review of pay and 

reward.   

   

9.4  Honoraria and acting up payments may be paid for those staff who have taken up 

additional responsibilities for a defined period of time to cover absence, or additional 

duties. Where possible such payments will be based on the job evaluated rates of 

pay for those responsibilities. Each case will be considered on its own merits and a 

fair recompense will be calculated.   

   

9.5  Temporary short-term appointments of staff will be paid in line with the job evaluated 

rate for the job and the prevailing market rate for such short-term appointments.   

   

9.6  Remuneration for staff on secondment will be in line with the Council’s Secondment 

Policy (see Appendix 1)   

   

   

62



 
 

8 
 

  10  Apprentices   

   

10.1 The Council actively supports the employment of apprentices. The salary paid to all 

newly recruited apprentices is based on the National Living Wage or the National 

Minimum Wage in accordance with the person’s age and is increased in line with 

Government recommendations.    

   

10.2 Current National Minimum Wage rates for employees are as follows:   

   

April 2021  21-22  18-20  Under 18  

  £8.56  £6.56  £4.62  

  April 2022  21-22  18-20  Under 18  

  £9.18  £6.83  £4.81 

 

National Minimum Wage rates are reviewed annually by the Government and any 

increases take effect from 1st April each year.    

  

10.3 In accordance with the Apprentice Levy any existing employees can be signed up to 

an appropriate apprenticeship in line with identified professional development needs.  

These employees receive the job evaluated salary for the post that they are 

employed in.   

  

  11.   Local Government Pension Scheme   

   

11.1 All staff who are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme make individual 

contributions to the scheme depending on their salary.   Contribution rates for 2020-

2021 range from 5.5% to 12.5%.    

   

11.2 The Council makes employer’s contributions into the scheme, which are reviewed by 

the actuary. The employer contribution rate from 1 April 2021 is 17.5%.      

   

12. Pay Multipliers   

   

12.1 Whilst job evaluation and the market determine the relationship between the highest 

and lowest paid employees, an analysis of pay multiples has been undertaken in the 

light of the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.   

   

12.2 The Council defines its lowest paid employees in relation to their grade. This 

definition has been selected to enable fair comparison on a Full Time Equivalent 

basis.   

   

12.3 The Ratio of the highest paid employee to mean salary per Full Time Equivalent 

(FTE) is 1 : 5.3 (based on actual salary paid).   

   

12.4 The Council has no policy about the maximum or minimum levels of such ratio 

statistics.   

   

63



 
 

9 
 

   

13. Termination Payments   

   

13.1 The Council recognises that staff leave the Council for a range of reasons including; 

retirement, redundancy, career move, moving location, voluntary resignation, or 

employment termination. Where a termination payment may apply, each case will be 

treated on its own merit and will comply with Council policies and the law.   

   

13.2 The Council reserves the right to make any appropriate payments to protect the 

reputation of the Council and manage risk of litigation. This will be in line with 

legislation and with reference to best value.   

   

13.3 The Council does not have any specific termination payments built into any 

employee’s employment contract. It reserves the right to do so should such a need 

arise in the interests of the efficiency of the service.   

   

13.4 The Council has a redundancy policy in place in accordance with current legislation 

which applies equally to all staff. Where redundancy payments are made to any 

employee the Council reserves the right to recover the redundancy severance 

payment.    

   

14. Re-engagement of employees   

   

14.1 Employees who are offered another post with any organisation covered by the 

Modification Order Act prior to their redundancy leaving date and commence within 4 

weeks of leaving, are not eligible to receive a redundancy payment.   

   

14.2 Employees who have been made redundant are eligible to apply for vacancies which 

may arise after they have left the Council’s employment.  Any such applications will 

be considered together with those from other candidates and the best person 

appointed to the post.  Any necessary adjustment to pension would be made in 

accordance with the scheme regulations.     

   

 15.   Gender Pay Gap Reporting   

   

15.1 The Government introduced a requirement for mandatory gender pay gap reporting 

for public sector employers with 250 or more employees.   The deadline for 

publishing the data is 31 March each year.   The Council publishes its annual data in 

accordance with the regulations and reports to Employment Committee with 

supporting commentary and any action points arising. 
  

64



Definitions of Chief Officers               

Localism Act 2011  

43  Interpretation  

(2)   In this Chapter “chief officer”, in relation to a relevant authority, means each of the 

following-  

(a) the head of its paid service designated under section 4(1) of the Local Government 

and Housing Act 1989;  

(b) its monitoring officer designated under section 5(1) of that Act;  

(c) a statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(6) of that Act;  

(d) a non-statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(7) of that Act;  

(e) a deputy chief officer mentioned in section 2(8) of that Act.   

 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 – Section 2  

6) In this section “the statutory chief officers” relevant to South Kesteven District Council 

means—  

(a) the officer having responsibility, for the purposes of section 151 of the Local  

Government Act 1972, section 73 of the Local Government Act 1985, section 112 of the  

Local Government Finance Act 1988[, section 127(2) of the Greater London Authority Act 

1999] or section 6 below or for the purposes of section 95 of the Local Government 

(Scotland) Act 1973, for the administration of the authority's financial affairs.  

(7) In this section “non-statutory chief officer” means, subject to the following provisions of 

this section—  

(a) a person for whom the head of the authority's paid service is directly responsible;  

(b) a person who, as respects all or most of the duties of his post, is required to report 

directly or is directly accountable to the head of the authority's paid service; and  

(c) any person who, as respects all or most of the duties of his post, is required to report 

directly or is directly accountable to the local authority themselves or any committee or 

sub-committee of the authority.  

(8) In this section “deputy chief officer” means, subject to the following provisions of this 

section, a person who, as respects all or most of the duties of his post, is required to report 

directly or is directly accountable to one or more of the statutory or non-statutory chief 

officers.  

(9) A person whose duties are solely secretarial or clerical or are otherwise in the 

nature of support services shall not be regarded as a non-statutory chief officer or a 

deputy chief officer for the purposes of this Part.  

Appendix 2 

65

http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.6190959432038484&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251972_70a%25sect%25151%25section%25151%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.29111436816547376&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251985_51a%25sect%2573%25section%2573%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.29111436816547376&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251985_51a%25sect%2573%25section%2573%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.5682975251100181&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251988_41a%25sect%25112%25section%25112%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.5682975251100181&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251988_41a%25sect%25112%25section%25112%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.25992970953511496&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251999_29a%25sect%25127%25section%25127%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.25992970953511496&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251999_29a%25sect%25127%25section%25127%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.20351726079912802&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251973_65a%25sect%2595%25section%2595%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250
http://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.20351726079912802&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T20724528309&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%251973_65a%25sect%2595%25section%2595%25&ersKey=23_T20724522250


  

66



Employment Committee Work Programme 2021 – 2022 
 

Chairman: Councillor Sarah Trotter 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Anna Kelly 
 

Subject Purpose Outcome sought 

 

9 March 2022 
 

Pay Review 
 

Findings of review to be presented to Committee March 
2022. 

Undertake a pay review of the organisation. 
 

Chief Executive’s Appraisal To present to Committee the findings of the independent 
appraisal for the Chief Executive for 2021/2022. 

Members agree the findings and work priorities 
for the year ahead. 

Gender Pay Gap Report Gender Pay Gap position for 2020/21 and update on the 
Gender Pay Gap action plan to be reported to 
Committee March 2022. 

Note the Gender Pay Gap position and review 
progress of the action plan. 

 

Following meeting (date tbc) 

Director Targets To agree targets for the Council’s Deputy Chief 
Executive and Directors for the coming year. 

Agreed targets and priorities for members of  
Corporate Management team for 22/23. 

 

Items to be allocated 
Employee Handbook Update to Employment Committee annually 

Annual review of the Employee Handbook, to ensure in line with current legislation and changes 

Employee Rewards and 
Recognition 

Update to Employment Committee annually. 
Annual report to Employment Committee to update on initiatives in place and any new initiatives. 

Onboarding Procedure Update to Employment Committee annually. 
Review of how onboarding has changed since lockdown and new ways of working and the effectiveness on 
inductions. 

67

A
genda Item

 8



Workforce Equality Report Update to Employment Committee Annually. 

Chief Executive Appraisal Annual Appraisal 
The Committee to conduct the Chief Executives Annual Appraisal. 

SKDC Intranet Review of SKDC intranet. 
 

68


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021
	5 Pay Review Scope
	6 People Strategy
	Appendix 1 - People Strategy
	Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Analysis

	7 Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix 1 - Pay Policy Statement 2022-23
	Appendix 2 - Definitions of Chief Officer

	8 Work Programme 2021 - 2022

